
 

 
 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
 Please Take Notice that the Zoning Board of Appeals of the City of Marshfield, State of 
Wisconsin, will be in session on Tuesday, May 10, 2016 at 5:00 PM in the 1st Floor Conference Room, 
Suite 108, City Hall Plaza, 630 South Central Avenue at which time all persons interested or their 
Agents or Attorneys may be heard on the following matters:  
 

1. Call to Order. – Chairman Markwardt. 
2. Roll Call. – Secretary Panzer. 
3. Elect Vice Chairman. 
4. Approval of Minutes – March 22, 2016. 
5. Variance Request by Dave Schreiner for an 18 foot variance to the minimum street side yard 

setback along a Major Street, to allow the construction of a 12 foot by 16 foot detached 
accessory structure, located at 2511-2513 East Becker Road, zoned “TR-6” Two Family 
Residential (parcel 33-06279). Section 18-65(7) requires all detached accessory buildings to 
comply with either the required street side yard setbacks or the setback of the existing façade 
facing the street side yard, whichever is more permissive. North Galvin Avenue is classified as 
a major street requiring a 50 foot street setback; however, the existing duplex is setback 35.5 
feet from North Galvin Avenue right-of-way making this the minimum required setback. 

6. Adjourn 
 

For additional information regarding items on the agenda, please contact Sam Schroeder, Zoning 
Administrator @ 715-486-2077.   

 
Deb M. Hall, WCMC 

City Clerk 

 

Publish 1 x on April 30, 2016 
 

CITY OF MARSHFIELD 
 

MEETING NOTICE 



 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MINUTES OF MARCH 22, 2016 

 
Meeting called to order by Chairperson Gerl at 5:03 p.m. in the 1st Floor Conference Room, Suite 108, City Hall 
Plaza. 
 
PRESENT:  Ed Gerl, Richard Kenyon, Robert Lewerenz, Dean Markwardt and 2nd Alternate Adam Wegner  
 
Excused:  Ken Bargender     
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Zoning Administrator Schroeder, Bill Schofield, David Johnson, Joe Fonti and Deputy 
Clerk Panzer  
 
ZB16-05    Motion by Markwardt, second by Lewerenz to approve the minutes of February 9, 2016 as 
submitted.  All Ayes. 
Motion carried.   
 
Deputy Clerk read the variance request of Joe Fonti representing the Marshfield Mall, to increase the maximum 
building coverage of a lot, to allow a building addition located at 503 East Ives Street.  Section 18-35(7) states 
that the maximum building coverage of a lot for nonresidential uses is 40 percent in properties zoned “CMU” 
Community Mixed Use.  The existing development currently exceeds the maximum lot coverage allowance, 
approximately covering 47 percent of the lot.  The proposed addition will increase the lot coverage by 
approximately 6 percent.  This addition would bring the total lot coverage to roughly 53 percent, which would 
be an approximate variance of 13 percent.  
                    
Background 
The Marshfield Mall with the address 503 West Ives Street is currently located across three separate parcels: 
33-03216BA, 33-03216, and 33-03216C.  The exact history of how this structure came to be about at its 
existing condition being located across three properties is unknown.  The ownership of these three properties is 
made up of multiple parties, which restrict all of the properties from being combined into one lot. Malls 4 U 
owns the property furthest to the west, parcel 33-03216BA and a group of individuals own the other two 
parcels, 33-03216 and 33-03216C; however, to add to the confusion Malls 4 U, has a current land lease in place 
with the group of individuals who own the other two properties giving them rights to the property.  
 
With plans to bring a new tenant into the Mall, the Applicant is currently working on constructing an addition 
approximately 25,000 square feet near the southeast corner of the Mall site.  The location of the addition is 
proposed to be constructed across two properties, parcels 33-03216 and 33-03216C.  In order to meet the 
standards of the Building Code and the Zoning Code, these two properties must be combined into one lot/tax 
parcel.  
 
Further reviewing the project, even if the two parcels, 33-03216 and 33-03216C are combined into one lot, the 
proposed addition would still increase the building lot coverage further past the maximum building lot coverage 
for the “CMU” Community Mixed Use Zoning District.  This leaves the Mall with two options: 1.) Transfer the 
ownership of all the properties under one party which would allow all three lots to be combined and meet the 
maximum building lot coverage or 2.) Get a variance to grant a waiver from the maximum building lot coverage 
requirement.  
 
Analysis 
Discussing these options described above, the Applicant has explained that option 1 is simply not possible or at 
all feasible because they cannot force a group of owners to sell them their property.  This leaves us with the 
second option of requesting a variance to allow the project to move forward.  
 



 
 
Section 18-35(7) states that the maximum building coverage of a lot for nonresidential uses is 40 percent in 
properties zoned “CMU” Community Mixed Use.  Viewing the parcels, 33-03216 and 33-03216C, as one lot, 
the existing development currently exceeds the maximum lot coverage allowance by approximately 7 percent, 
covering 47 percent of the lot.  This makes the existing lot a legal nonconforming situation.  The proposed 
addition would increase the lot coverage by approximately 6 percent, bringing the final lot coverage to roughly 
53 percent, which is approximately a 13 percent variance.  
 
Although the proposed development simply cannot meet the zoning code requirements, it can be taken into 
account that the Marshfield Mall is one site and functions as one development.  If we were to take into account 
the third parcel, 33-03216BA, even though it is technically located on a separate lot, the existing development 
and proposed development would meet the minimum lot coverage.  Using the information provided by the 
Assessor Department the total area of all three lots is 861,515 square feet.  The existing building footprint of the 
Mall is 282,454 square feet.  The proposed addition, per the state approval and the plan set is 25,584 square 
feet, for a total proposed square footage of 308,038 square feet.  Using these figures the Mall site, including all 
three parcels, has a building coverage of 35.8 percent, which is under the maximum allowable building 
coverage of 40 percent.  
   
Statement of Facts 

1. The subject property is 503 E Ives Street. 
2. The Marshfield Mall is currently located across three separate parcels:  33-03216BA, 33-03216, and 33-

03216C. 
3. The Applicant is Joe Fonti, part owner of Malls4U representing the Marshfield Mall. 
4. Mall4U, LLC is the property owner of parcel 33-03216BA. 
5. The property owners of parcels 33-03216 and 33-03216C are a group of individuals including: 

a. Ted and Shirley Cichonski – 50% 
b. Anderson Connor – 10% 
c. Thelma Connor – 10% 
d. Kathryn Kent Connor – 10% 
e. Daniel Rupar – 10% 
f. Anderson Connor, Jr. – 10% 

6.  To meet building and zoning code requirements, parcels 33-03216 and 33-03216C are required to be 
combined. 

7. The existing development already exceeds the 40 percent maximum building lot coverage by 
approximately 7 percent. 

8. The proposed addition will increase the building coverage for this lot by approximately 6 percent, for a 
total building coverage of 53 percent. 
 

Applicable Ordinance Section(s) 
1. Section 18-35(7) requires a maximum building coverage of a lot for nonresidential uses in the “CMU” 

Community Mixed Use zoning district is 40 percent.    
 

Variance Criteria (Section 18-165(6)(a)) 
The Zoning Board of Appeals shall review all variance requests against the standards provided under Wisconsin 
Statutes and applicable case law. To qualify for a variance, an applicant would have the burden of proof to 
demonstrate that the variance criteria are met. The following are the criteria and the Applicants response: 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
(How will the variance not be contrary to the public interest?)  “The variance will not harm the public, in 
fact the variance will serve the best interest of the people of Marshfield. The variance will result in promoting 
economic growth in the City of Marshfield by adding a national retailer in the Mall.” 
 
(Will substantial justice be done by granting the variance?)  “The granting of the variance will promote 
substantial justice. Marshfield citizens look at the Mall land and buildings as one shopping complex, the fact 
that the land is owned by different property owners should not impinge on the best use of this land to increase 
the square feet of buildings at this Mall complex. The overall Mall complex building currently occupy 30.4% of 
the land area of the Mall complex and with the proposed 25,000 square foot addition, the buildings would total 
33.3% of the land area.” 
 
(Is the variance needed so that the spirit of the ordinance is observed?)  “The Mall buildings are in an 
unusual placement in relation to the land that is owned by Malls 4 U, LLC and the Ground Lessor’s, the 
Connor’s and Cichonski’s. This same building configuration has existed since 1979 and since 1979 the 
Connor’s and Cichonski’s have owned 11 acres of the Mall complex and various Mall owners have owned the 
8.78 acres that make up tax parcel 33-03216BA.”  
 
(Due to special conditions, will a literal enforcement of the provisions of the zoning ordinance result in 
unnecessary hardship?)  “The ordinance does result in undue hardship to the Mall property owners and will 
result in land locking the Mall from any further development of the Mall property. The Mall which comprises 
almost 20 acres could not bring the proposed national retailer that would greatly benefit the Mall and the other 
stores in the mall. The Mall is viewed as an entire complex and only 33.3% of the land that comprises the Mall 
complex would be occupied by buildings  
 
Although making a determination to grant a variance is based on whether it meets all the criteria described 
under our local ordinance, state statutes, and case law, there are multiple justifications as why the criterion is 
met: no harm to public interest, viewing the lot as one site meets the intent of the code, the unique property 
boundaries splitting the building with multiple owners was existing, and there is no reasonable additional uses 
without such approval. 
 
In addition to the criteria listed above which are stated in our Municipal Zoning Code that reflects Wisconsin 
State Statute, case law has historically viewed unique property limitations as an additional variance criterion, 
separate from the hardship requirement. As described above being an existing property splitting the current 
building with multiple interests could arguably be a unique property limitation specific to this property.  

Zoning Board of Appeals Options 
1. To grant the variance. 
2. To deny the variance. 
3. Table the request for further study. 

  
Chairperson Gerl opened the public hearing. 
 
Comments:  None  
  
Chairperson Gerl declared the public hearing closed. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ZB16-06    Motion by Lewerenz, second by Kenyon to grant the variance request of Joe Fonti representing the 
Marshfield Mall, to increase the maximum building coverage of a lot, to allow the building addition located at 
503 East Ives Street for the following reasons: 
 

• Granting this variance will result in promoting economic growth for the City of Marshfield.  
• Bringing in a national retailer will promote a substantial justice to the Marshfield citizens. 
• Nobody knows why the property is split up or why it all got this way, but as long as all parties have 

long term agreements it should be looked at as one property and that follows the spirt of the 
ordinance. 
 

The proposed building addition will increase the lot coverage by approximately 6 percent.  This addition would 
bring the total lot coverage to roughly 53 percent, which would be an approximate variance of 13 percent.  
                 
All Ayes.   
Motion carried  
 
Motion by Kenyon, second by Markwardt to adjourn at 5:34 p.m.                         
Motion carried 
 
 
 
Lori A. Panzer 
Deputy City Clerk 
 
  



 
 
 

 
      TO: Zoning Board of Appeals  
FROM: Sam Schroeder, Zoning Administrator 
 DATE: May 10, 2016 
     
      RE: Variance Request – 2511-2513 East Becker Road 
 
Applicant: Dave Schreiner 
 
Request:  The Applicant is requesting an 18 foot variance to the minimum street 

side yard setback along a Major Street, to allow the construction of a 12 
foot by 16 foot detached accessory structure with a 6 foot separation from 
the dwelling unit, located at 2511-2513 East Becker Road, zoned “TR-6” 
Two Family Residential (parcel 33-06279). Section 18-65(7) requires all 
detached accessory buildings to comply with either the required street 
side yard setbacks or the setback of the existing façade facing the street 
side yard, whichever is more permissive. North Galvin Avenue is 
classified as a major street requiring a 50 foot street setback; however, 
the existing duplex is setback 35.5 feet from North Galvin Avenue right-of-
way making this the minimum required setback. 

 
Background 
 
Because of the lack of storage space, Dave Schreiner is requesting to construct a 12 
foot by 16 foot detached accessory structure within the minimum required street side 
yard between the principal dwelling unit located at 2513 East Becker Road and the right-
of-way of North Galvin Avenue. A similar variance was requested by the Applicant in 
2003 to allow the addition of a 20 foot wide attached garage. The Zoning Board of 
Appeals denied the variance based on the following (highlighted in the October 14, 2003 
Zoning Board of Appeals minutes): 

• They felt that this property is located near a heavy intersection and that the 
proposed garage would encroach in the vision triangle.  

• They felt that there were other options, such as a storage shed or garage in the 
back of the existing house, since the lot depth is 135 feet. 

Although previously denied, the Applicant and staff do feel there are valid unique 
property circumstances that were not brought into account in 2003. While it is a heavy 
intersection, the proposal would not encroach into the vision triangle. Also because of 
the heavy intersection, requiring the Applicant to install a shed in his rear yard could 
possibly give him unreasonable use of his property. 
  
Analysis 
 
A detached accessory building cannot be constructed between the principal structure 

City of  
Marshfield 

Memorandum 
 



and the front property line and must meet the underlying zoning district setback 
requirements, which in the “TR-6” Two-Family Residential Zoning District would be a 15 
foot setback off of the North Galvin Avenue right-of-way. With that said, North Galvin 
Avenue is however classified as a minor arterial or major street, which requires a 50 foot 
setback. The purpose of this higher standard for major streets is to allow for the growth, 
expansion, or widening of these highly used streets that may show an increase in traffic 
from one year to the next. If traffic ever increased to a point that it caused traffic 
concerns, safety issues, or major congestions, this increased setback for new 
development would allow the City to possibly acquire additional right-of-way to widen a 
road. Often times a city can look to either construct additional lanes or install designated 
turn lanes to mediate traffic. The general idea is if additional right-of-way was ever to be 
acquired that all of the existing development would still meet the minimum underlying 
zoning district setback requirements and not make any nonconforming situations. 
 
Section 18-65(7)(k)2 states that a detached accessory buildings must comply with either 
the required street side yard setback (50’) or the setback of the existing façade facing 
the street side yard street (35.5’), whichever is more permissive. In this case the existing 
dwelling unit is already located within the required major street setback which would 
make this the minimum required setback.  
 
The Applicant is proposing to construct a 12 foot by 16 foot detached accessory building 
between the dwelling unit and North Galvin Avenue right-of-way with a 6 foot separation 
from the principal building as required by the Zoning Code. This would leave the 
proposed building to be setback 17.5 feet from the North Galvin Avenue right-of-way 
which would be an 18 foot variance request.  
 
While the proposed structure is within the required setback because Galvin Avenue is 
considered a major street it does meet the minimum 15 foot setback of the underlying 
zoning district. In addition it could be argued that the 50 foot major street setback 
requirement is no longer needed.  

• This intersection was reconstructed in 2006 to configure the lanes for future traffic 
projections, which added a turn lane. 

• After 17 feet of the subject property was dedicated to the right-of-way during the 
creation of the subdivision plat, the existing right-of-way width for North Galvin 
Avenue at this location is 83 feet wide which is greater than the recommended 
width of 80 feet in the Subdivision Ordinance.  

• It is likely that this road will never be widened again and if it did need to be 
widened it already has an adequate right-of-way width.  

 
In most instances, Section 18-72 allows for a setback adjustment by averaging adjacent 
properties to allow for new development to blend with existing development. A major 
street setback adjustment does not work in the Applicants case for two reasons. The first 
reason is that the adjustment and setbacks are measured from the right-of-way line; 
while the subject property and all the properties to the north dedicated 17 feet of right-of-
way, none of the properties south of East Becker Road dedicated any. The second 
reason is that all of the properties to the north are the rear yards, which are already 
typically greater than 50 feet for larger properties.  
 
Statement of Facts 
 

1. The Applicant is Dave Schreiner. 



2. The subject property is located at 2511-2513 East Becker Road. 
3. The current zoning district is “TR-6” Two-Family Residential. 
4. East Becker Road and North Galvin Avenue are both considered minor 

arterials/major streets, requiring a minimum setback of 50 feet.  
5. The minimum required setback for a detached accessory structure abutting a 

major street is either the required street side yard setback (50’) or the setback of 
the existing façade facing the street side yard (35.5’), whichever is more 
permissive. 

6. The principal structure is currently setback 35.5’ from the North Galvin Avenue 
right-of-way. 

7. The street side yard setback for the underlying zoning district if North Galvin 
Avenue was not classified as a major street would be 15 feet. 

8. The Applicant is requesting an 18 foot variance (existing principal building 
setback of 35.5’ minus the accessory building separation of 6’ minus the 
proposed width of the accessory building of 12’ for a remaining setback of 18 
feet). 

 
Applicable Ordinance Section(s) 
 
1. Section 18-30(7) Density, Intensity and Bulk Regulations for the Two Family 

Residential - 6 District, residential uses: 
a. Minimum Street Side Setback: 15 feet. 
b. Major Street Setback: 50 feet or mean of adjoining lots 

2. Section 18-65(7)(i) Separation from principal dwelling units. Detached accessory 
buildings shall be located a minimum of 6 feet from a residential dwelling unit on the 
same lot, except where the structure will be constructed to fire-rating standards of 
the uniform Dwelling Code. If the fire-rating standards are met, an accessory building 
may be located in the required separation area and do not render the structures 
attached for setback purposes. 

3. Section 18-65(7)(k)2. Street side yards: detached accessory buildings must comply 
with either the required street side yard setback or the setback of the existing façade 
facing the street side yard street, whichever is more permissive. 

4. Section 18-102(4) Vision Triangles at Public Streets. A vision triangle extending 30 
feet from all public street right of way intersections shall be maintained. No wall, 
fence, structure, utility structure or appurtenance, or vegetation shall be permitted 
within such vision triangle which materially impedes vision between the height of 2 ½ 
feet and 8 feet. 

5. Section 13-126(7)(b)2. At all intersections where traffic devices are installed, a sight 
triangular area at all corners shall be established by measurements along 
intersecting street centerlines … The triangle area shall be determined by connecting 
points on the street centerlines which are 90 feet from the intersection of the 
centerline as through streets. The triangular area shall be determines by connecting 
points on the street centerlines which are 60 feet from the intersection of the 
centerline, as to all other streets. 

6. Section 19-64(f) states the right-of-way width shall not be less than 80 feet for a 
minor arterial. 

 
Variance Criteria (Section 18-165(6)(a)) 
 
The Zoning Board of Appeals shall review all variance requests against the standards 
provided under Wisconsin Statutes and applicable case law. To qualify for a variance, an 



applicant would have the burden of proof to demonstrate that the variance criteria are 
met. The following are the criteria and the Applicants response: 
 
(How will the variance not be contrary to the public interest?)  “No” 
 
(Will substantial justice be done by granting the variance?)  “The current single car 
garage does not allow for safe keeping of tools, snow blower, motorcycle, boat, etc. In 
addition most properties along Galvin are in violation of the required setbacks.” 
 
(Is the variance needed so that the spirit of the ordinance is observed?)  “Currently 
Galvin and Becker require a 50 foot setback however a large part of my property along 
Galvin was already dedicated to right of way. Also Galvin has a right turn land and will 
likely not need widening again.” 
 
(Due to special conditions, will a literal enforcement of the provisions of the 
zoning ordinance result in unnecessary hardship?)  “If the shed is to be placed in my 
backyard it defeats the purpose of having access to a snow blower which I would have 
to snow blow a trail from back yard to the front where it is needed. Also safe keeping of 
my motorcycle from back yard would require me to drive on wet grass which could result 
in accidents.” 
 
Although making a determination to grant a variance is always difficult, there are multiple 
justifications as to why the criterion is met based on all the criteria described under our 
local ordinance, state statutes, and case law: 

• There is no harm to public interest – although this is a busy intersection, the 
proposed shed is well outside either of the required vision triangles. 

• Substantial justice will be done – allowing this shed will allow the Applicant 
reasonable use of his property. The Applicant will still be able to use the rear 
yard without a safety concern and this will allow the Applicant to remove the 
temporary structure. In addition, a small one stall garage is not a reasonable 
amount of storage space in this day and age.  

• Would the spirit of the ordinance be observed – the reason for a major street 
setback is to allow for future expansion if needed, North Galvin Avenue was 
recently reconstructed to allow a right turn lane, the right-of-way is already 83 
feet wide which is wider than most, and it is unlikely in the near future that North 
Galvin Avenue would ever need to be expanded. 

• Will literal enforcement result in unnecessary hardship – although there is room 
to construct a shed of this size in the rear yard, this will likely leave the applicant 
with an unreasonable use of his property specifically the street side yard. The 
high traffic volume could be a safety concern if the Applicant had to do activities 
in the street side yard instead of the back yard if he were forced to install the 
shed in the back yard. In addition, the City of Marshfield would not grant an 
additional ingress or egress into the property off of North Galvin Avenue if the 
shed were to be installed in the back yard. Also with a previously portion of the 
property previously dedicated to the right-of-way, the City will likely not need to 
acquire additional right-of-way in addition to the major street will likely not need 
to be expanded for many years to come,  

 
In addition to the criteria listed above which are stated in our Municipal Zoning Code that 
reflects Wisconsin State Statute, case law has historically viewed unique property 



limitations as an additional variance criterion, separate from the hardship requirement. 
Being a property abutting two major streets could possibly be viewed as a unique 
property circumstance having an unreasonable use of a large portion of the lot.   
 
Zoning Board Options 
 
The Zoning Board can make the following recommendations: 

1. Approval of the variance request with justification the criteria are met as stated by 
the Zoning Board. 

2. Denial of the request with justification the criteria are not met stated by the 
Zoning Board. 

3. Table the request for further study.   
 
Recommendation 
 
Per the discretion of the Zoning Board of Appeals based on findings that the request 
meets all four variance criteria. 
 
Attachments 
 

1. Variance Application 
2. Location Map 
3. Site Plan 
4. Letter from the City Engineer 
5. Photos 







17
' R

OW
 D

ed
ica

tio
n

60' x 90' 
Public Works 
Vision Triangle

30' x 30' Zoning 
Vision Triangle

Proposed Shed

N 
GA

LV
IN

 A
VE

E BECKER RD

Variance: Dave Schreiner - 2513 E Becker Rd
City of Marshfield - Zoning Board of Appeals
Meeting Date: May 10, 2016

ATTENTION:  The representation of data presented herein is intended 
for reference purposes only; the City of Marshfield assumes no

 responsibility for the accuracy of the information provided.  
Any duplication without consent is prohibited.

Map Not To Scale
For Reference Only

Subject Property
ROW Dedication
Vision Triangles
Marshfield Parcels

³











 


	1 160510 ZBA PHN (160430)
	UNOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
	CITY OF MARSHFIELD
	MEETING NOTICE

	2 160322 ZBA Minutes
	UZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MINUTES OF MARCH 22, 2016
	Zoning Board of Appeals Options

	Motion carried
	Lori A. Panzer

	3 ZBA-16-003 Dave Schriener (2513 E Becker Rd) Variance Setback 160510
	City of
	Marshfield
	Memorandum

	Zoning Board Options


